
 

                           Chester County Transportation Meeting May 3rd, 2021.                        
 

 

        CHESTER COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE MEETING 
                         Monday, May 3rd, 2021 at 5:15 PM 
           R. Carlisle Roddey Chester County Government Complex 
               1476 J A Cochran Bypass, Council Chambers  
      

                            AGENDA  

 

1.    Call to Order 

2.    Approval of minutes 
             a. April 6th, 2021 CCTC Minutes. 

 

  3.    Old Business  
 a. Approval of 2022 SCDOT/CTC partnership. -Bill Coleman. 

 b. Update of Douglas and Washington Street sidewalks. Bill Coleman.  

 c. Update on Baseball Alley- LB Cannon. 

 d. Update on JA Cochran Bypass and Ashford Street Sidewalk installation. -LB Cannon 

 
  4.   New Business  

a. Discussion regarding Pedestrian Crossing Agreement at Railroad at Pizza Hut. - LB Cannon 

             b. Discuss truck traffic on Sugar Plum Road. -Councilwoman Guy. 

 c. Discuss road repair on Wylie Road. Councilwoman Guy. 

d. Approval of 2022 Road repaving list-Public Works Director Robert Hall. 

 e. Request to Reimburse the Road Department for Road Maintenance from November 2020 to  
             January 2021 in the amount of $38,170.38 dollars. 

 f. Request to Reimburse the Recycling Department for Sign Material from January 2021 to April 2021  
 in the amount $1458.38 dollars.   

 

  5.   Adjourn 

 

  

 



 

             Special Called Chester County Transportation Meeting April 6th, 2021.                        
 

 

CHESTER COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE SPECIAL CALLED MEETING MINUTES  
                              Tuesday, April 6th, 2021 at 5:45 PM 
                 R. Carlisle Roddey Chester County Government Complex 
                   1476 J A Cochran Bypass, Council Chambers 
     

 

 

  
Present: Interim Chairman Dr. Wylie Frederick, Vice Chairman Joe Branham, Councilman Brad Jordan, Councilman Mike Vaughn, 
Councilwoman Mary Guy, Councilman Pete Wilson, Clerk to Council Karen Lee and County Attorney Joanie Winters. Rules of Procedure 
Section 2-59- and 60 were suspended. Councilman William Killian arrived at 5:52 pm. 
 

1.    Call to Order- Interim Chairman called the meeting to order at 5:45 pm.  

2.    Approval of minutes 
             a. March 15th, 2021 CCTC Minutes. 

Councilman Vaughn motioned to approve, second by Vice Chairman Branham. Vote 5-0 to approve.  
 

  3.    Old Business  
 a.   Approval of obligated FEMA funds to mitigate Britt Lane. Rick Craps, Dennis Corp.  
  Councilman Wilson motioned to approve, second by Councilwoman Guy. Vote 5-0 to approve.  
             
  4.   New Business  
 a.   Approval of bid for Deer Branch Culvert in the amount of $ 45,221.50-Rick Craps, Dennis Corp. 
 Councilman Vaughn motioned to approve, second by Councilman Wilson. Vote 5-0 to approve.   
 
  5.   Adjourn-Vice Chairman Branham motioned to adjourn, second by Councilwoman Guy. Vote 6-0 to approve.  

 

  

 



LC Form 7422-I v1 
Revised January 2021 

Agreement No. LC-210413 

 1 

  PEDESTRIAN GRADE CROSSING LICENSE AGREEMENT 
 
THIS PEDESTRIAN GRADE CROSSING LICENSE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), made as of April 
13, 2021, the “Effective Date”, by and between Lancaster & Chester Railroad, LLC, whose mailing 
address is 1629 Race Track Road, Unit 206, Saint Johns, FL 32259, hereinafter called “Railroad” 
party of the first part, and Chester County Public Works, whose mailing address is P.O. Box 580, 
Chester, SC 29706, hereinafter called “Licensee”, party of the second part, 

 
WITNESSETH: 

 
Railroad, subject to the limitations herein, for and in consideration of the fees to be paid by Licensee and 
of the covenants, terms, conditions and agreements herein to be kept and performed by Licensee, hereby 
grant to Licensee the right or license to construct, use and maintain a pedestrian sidewalk at grade across 
the tracks, right-of-way, and property of Railroad, at or near Chester, Chester County, South Carolina, 
hereinafter called “Crossing”, said Crossing being five (5) feet wide, the center line of which extends 
across said right-of-way and intersects the center line of Railroad’s tracks at Milepost 1.43 on the east 
shoulder of J.A. Cochran Bypass, as shown highlighted on print of Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a 
part hereof. 
 
1. DEFINITIONS: 
 

1.1 The term “Licensee” herein shall include the undersigned corporation, association, 
partnership, governmental body or individual, as the case may be.  The term “Licensee” 
shall also include Licensee’s contractors, agents, employees, servants, and invitees.  All 
words herein referring to Licensee shall be taken to be of such number and gender as the 
context may require. 

 
1.2 The term “Railroad” herein shall include any other company or companies whose 

property at the aforesaid location may be leased or operated by the undersigned Railroad, 
and any parent, subsidiary or affiliated system companies of Railroad and the servants, 
agents or employees of each. 

 
1.3 The term “satisfactory” or “satisfaction” herein shall mean approval by Railroad or its 

designated representative. 
 

1.4 The term “Crossing” herein shall include track crossings, approaches, roadways, drainage 
facilities, warning devices, signal and wire lines, gates, barricades, signs, appliances and 
ancillary facilities. 

 
1.5 If this Agreement covers more than one crossing or more than one track, the terms 

“Crossing” and “Track” herein shall be construed respectively as including any one or all 
of said crossing or tracks, as the context may require. 

 
1.6 “Maintenance” shall include keeping all vegetation, to the extent possible, with the areas 

known as “Sight Clearance Areas”, as shown on the attached Exhibit B, cut to a height 
not exceeding two feet (2’) above ground level, and keeping said “Sight Clearance 
Areas” free of parked vehicles and other obstructions. 

 
2. USE, LIMITATIONS: 
 

2.1 This license is subject to:  (a) all encumbrances, conditions, covenants and easements 
applicable to Railroad’s title to or rights in the subject property; (b) any existing public 
utilities and other pipe or wire line facilities located in, on, over, under or across the 
Crossing; (c) all instruments, easements, agreements and rights therefor, recorded or not; 
and (d) compliance by Licensee with terms and conditions herein. 



LC Form 7422-I v1 
Revised January 2021 

Agreement No. LC-210413 

 2 

2.2 The Crossing shall be used solely as a pedestrian crossing for the purpose of public 
ingress/egress over Licensee’s adjacent lands. 

 
2.3 This Agreement is a personal license to Licensee and Licensee will not sub-license or 

sub-let any of its rights hereunder without the prior consent in writing of Railroad, which 
consent may be withheld in Railroad’s sole and absolute discretion. 

 
2.4 Licensee, at its sole cost and expense, shall erect and permanently maintain any signage, 

including ground markings or warning detection, at locations adjacent to said Crossing as 
designated and/ or approved by Railroad. 

 
2.5 Railroad reserves and accepts unto itself the paramount right to continue to occupy, 

possess and use the area of the Crossings for any and all railroad purpose.  Railroad shall 
not be obligated to make cuts in its trains for the Crossing. 

 
2.6 No expressed or implied means of ingress and egress or way of necessity upon, across or 

over adjacent lands of Railroad is granted by this Agreement.  Licensee, at its own 
expense, will secure and maintain any necessary means of ingress and egress to the 
Crossing across lands of others. 

 
3. FEES: 
 

3.1 Upon execution of this Agreement, Licensee shall pay Railroad an annual license fee of 
Three Hundred Sixty-Five U.S. Dollars ($365) that will be billed on each anniversary 
of the above effective date.  Such fee is subject to periodic review and adjustment by 
Railroad. 

 
3.2 Licensee will also pay a one-time contract preparation and administration fee of One 

Thousand U.S. Dollars ($1,000) upon execution of this Agreement. 
 

3.3 Licensee shall also indemnify Railroad against, and shall pay or reimburse Railroad for, 
any additional taxes and assessments levied solely on account of the existence of said 
Crossing.  The provisions in this Section shall survive the expiration or termination of 
this Agreement. 

 
4. CONSTRUCTION, MAINTENANCE: 
 

4.1 Subject to the provisions of Section 4.4, crossing (including the necessary appurtenances, 
approaches, roadways, curbs, gutters, shoulders, slopes, fills and cuts and drainage 
thereof) have been constructed, and hereafter maintained, at the sole cost and expense of 
Licensee. 

 
4.2 All construction and maintenance work to be performed on that portion of said Crossing 

between the rails of said tracks and for two feet (2’) on the outside of each rail thereof 
deemed necessary by Railroad to permit Licensee’s use of Crossing during the period 
Licensee is actively using the Crossing, must be performed by Railroad at Licensee’s 
expense. 

 
4.3 Licensee, at its sole cost and expense, shall maintain all approachways, and shall keep the 

crossing and designated Sight Clearance Areas at all times free and clear of all spilled 
materials and all obstructions (including parked vehicles) to satisfaction of Railroad. 

 
 
 
 



LC Form 7422-I v1 
Revised January 2021 

Agreement No. LC-210413 

 3 

 
4.4 Licensee shall perform or cause all Licensee’s construction and maintenance under this 

Agreement to be performed in a prudent and workmanlike manner, in conformity with 
any applicable statutes, orders, rules, regulations and specifications of any public 
authority having jurisdiction over the Crossing and under conditions satisfactory to and 
approved by Railroad.  Said construction and maintenance shall be performed at such 
times and in such manner as not to interfere with the movement of Railroad’s trains and 
equipment. 

 
4.5 If any party or persons will be constructing or maintaining the Crossing or performing 

work of any character on Railroad’s property or in Railroad’s “zone-of-influence”, said 
party will be required to enter into a Right-of-Entry (ROE) Agreement to conduct the 
work. 

 
4.6 In the event Licensee fails, in the judgment of Railroad, to comply with any construction 

or maintenance requirements of this Agreement, Railroad, without waiving any other 
provision of this Agreement, may either furnish the labor and materials required to do 
such work, at the sole cost and expense of Licensee (in which event Licensee shall 
immediately reimburse Railroad for such costs and expenses upon receipt from Railroad 
of a bill therefor, or terminate this Agreement in accordance with Article 12 hereof). 

 
5. DRAINAGE: 
 

5.1 Licensee shall not interfere with, or permit its contractors agents, employees, servants, or 
invitees to interfere with, the existing drainage facilities within the approachways or 
underneath said Crossing. 

 
5.2 Licensee shall maintain, at Licensee’s sole expense and in a manner satisfactory to 

Railroad, necessary drainage pipe within the approachways and underneath said 
Crossing, on each side of said tracks, to accept drainage from the roadbed and keep 
drainage from tracks and right-of-way of Railroad. 

 
6. PERMITS: 
 

6.1 Licensee, at its sole cost and expense, shall obtain any necessary permits or licenses from 
all Federal, State or local public authorities having jurisdiction over the Crossing or 
Railroad’s right-of-way and shall thereafter observe and comply with said licenses and 
permits, with the requirements of such public authorities, and with all applicable laws, 
rules and regulations and modifications thereof. 

 
6.2 This License Agreement is for granting private road crossing access only.  Any wirelines, 

pipelines or utilities of any nature will need to be permitted under separate agreements. 
 
6.3 Railroad shall cooperate with Licensee in securing and complying with any Federal, State 

or local permits relative to Licensee’s Crossing. 
 

6.4 Licensee shall defend, protect and hold Railroad harmless for failure to obtain permits 
and licenses, for any violation thereof, or for costs or expenses of compliance or 
remediation.  The provisions in this Article shall survive the expiration or termination of 
this Agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 



LC Form 7422-I v1 
Revised January 2021 

Agreement No. LC-210413 

 4 

 
7. BARRICADES, GATES, SIGNALS: 
 

7.1 Licensee, at its sole cost and expense, shall furnish, construct and maintain any gates, 
barricades, signs, flashing light signals, and/or crossing warning devices, or provide 
permanent flaggers or other protective services, as shall from time to time be deemed 
necessary for public safety purposes by Railroad, the DOT or by any public authority 
sharing jurisdiction over rail grade crossings.  The design and placement of signs, 
barriers, gates and any crossing warning devices shall be subject to the approval of 
Railroad.  The cost of installing and maintaining and/or furnishing such additional 
crossing protection shall be paid solely by Licensee as a condition to utilizing the 
Crossing. 

 
7.2 Railroad may elect to furnish materials and install such gates, barricades, signs or other 

crossing warning devices, or provide such protective services, at the sole cost and 
expense of Licensee.  Railroad may require and, if required, Licensee shall immediately 
fund, advance deposit of estimated cost and expense of such work and materials.  Upon 
completion of construction, Railroad will promptly refund any portion of the deposit in 
excess of Railroad’s costs and expenses.  Should Railroad’s costs and expenses exceed 
said deposit, Licensee shall promptly pay such excess upon receipt from Railroad of a bill 
therefor. 

 
7.3 After any crossing signals have been placed in service, Railroad will operate and 

maintain said signals, at the sole expense of Licensee.  Costs of such signal maintenance 
and operation (including electric current) will be reviewed periodically, and the amount 
billed will be revised accordingly.  In addition to said signal maintenance and operation 
expense, Licensee shall reimburse Railroad, within sixty (60) days after receipt of 
itemized bill from Railroad, for (a) the cost of upgrading said signals to prevent 
obsolescence and (b) the cost of repairing or replacing said signals as a result of damages 
thereto, howsoever resulting.  If Licensee fails or refuses to maintain and/or provide or 
pay costs thereof, Railroad may terminate the Agreement as provided in Article 12. 

 
8. OPERATIONAL SAFETY: 
 

8.1 Licensee shall use and shall cause its contractors, agents, employees, servants, and 
invitees to use the highest degree of care in the operation and use of said Crossing so as 
to avoid collisions and/or interference with operations of Railroad. 

 
8.2 Licensee shall erect and thereafter maintain, at its sole cost and expense, standard 

reflecting highway “STOP” signs, “Cross Bucks” and Emergency FRA/ DOT “Placards” 
on each side of the Crossing, clearly visible to vehicular traffic approaching the Crossing 
from either side.  Licensee shall be solely responsible to periodically inspect such signs to 
ensure that same are in place and visible. 

 
9. FLAGGING, CONSTRUCTION: 
 

9.1 If Railroad deems it advisable during any period of construction, maintenance, repair, 
renewal, alteration, change, or removal of said Crossing, to place temporary watchmen, 
flaggers, inspectors or supervisors, for protection of operations of Railroad or others on 
Railroad’s right-of-way at the Crossing, Railroad shall have the right to do so, at the 
expense of Licensee, but Railroad shall not be liable for its failure to do so.  If such 
temporary watchmen, flaggers, inspectors or supervisors are utilized by Railroad, 
Licensee agrees to pay railroad for such service at a rate of One Hundred and Fifty U.S. 
Dollars ($150) per hour, with a minimum of four (4) hours to be billed for each period 
that such temporary watchmen, flaggers, inspectors or supervisors are so utilized. 



LC Form 7422-I v1 
Revised January 2021 

Agreement No. LC-210413 

 5 

Licensee will be billed monthly and shall make payment to Railroad within thirty (30) 
days of receipt of Railroad’s invoice covering such service.  The flagging rate shall be 
subject to revision based on future rates that are in effect at the time flagging is 
performed. 

 
9.2 Subject to Railroad’s consent and to Railroad’s railroad operating rules, Licensee may 

provide flaggers, watchmen, inspector or supervisors during all times of such 
construction, re-construction, etc., at Licensee’s sole risk and expense; and in such event 
Railroad shall not be liable for the failure or neglect of such watchmen, flaggers, 
inspectors or supervisors. 

 
10. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS: 
 

10.1 Neither Licensee nor Licensee’s contractors, agents, invitees or employees, may 
transport, carry or haul any explosive, flammable, combustible or other hazardous or 
dangerous materials, goods or commodities across tracks of Railroad without separate 
prior written consent of Railroad.  Such restrictions shall not apply to gasoline or diesel 
fuel in the vehicular fuel supply tanks of any vehicle passing over Crossing. 

 
11. ALTERATIONS, TRACK CHANGES: 
 

11.1 Whenever any repairs or changes are made to Railroad’s right-of-way or track, or if 
additional tracks are laid at the site of the Crossing, necessitating repairs to, alteration of, 
or relocation of the Crossing, Licensee shall pay for or shall furnish labor and materials to 
make such repairs to, alterations of, or relocation of the Crossing. 

 
11.2 In the event that Railroad’s operating and/or maintenance needs or uses require any 

change (including any raising, lowering, or additions to), relocation or improvement in its 
right-of-way, tracks, structures, roadbed, rail communication or other facilities (including 
fiber optic cable), which necessitate any change in Crossing and/or the grading, 
approaches or drainage, Licensee shall make such changes within thirty (30) days after 
notice in writing from Railroad, all at Licensee’s sole cost and expense, and upon plans 
and specifications approved by Railroad. 

 
11.3 If Licensee undertakes to revise, renew, relocate or change in any manner whatsoever all 

or any part of Crossing, or is required by any public agency or court order to do, plans 
therefor shall be submitted to Railroad for approval before any such change is made.  
Once approved, Licensee, or their contractor, will be required to enter into a Right-of-
Entry Agreement (ROE Agreement) to conduct said changes.  After the work has been 
completed, the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall apply thereto. 

 
11.4 After change or alteration, the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall apply thereto. 

 
12. TERM, TERMINATION: 
 

12.1 Subject to Section 12.2, this Agreement shall be and remain in effect as of the effective 
date first written above for one (1) year and thereafter from year to year until terminated 
by either party by delivering to the other party at least thirty (30) days prior written notice 
of such termination. 

 
12.2 Upon failure of Licensee to perform or comply with any term, covenant, clause, or 

condition herein contained, this Agreement may be terminated immediately upon notice 
by Railroad; provided, however, that if such breach may be cured and Licensee cures said 
breach within twenty four (24) hours of receipt by Licensee of said notice to Licensee by 
Railroad, then this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.   



LC Form 7422-I v1 
Revised January 2021 

Agreement No. LC-210413 

 6 

12.3 All rights which Licensee may have hereunder shall cease and end upon the termination 
date so specified; provided, however, that termination of this Agreement shall not in any 
manner affect any claims and liability which may have arisen or accrued hereunder prior 
to termination, and which, at the time of termination, have not been satisfied or any 
obligations that are intended to survive termination. 

 
12.4 Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, Licensee’s assumption of liability, 

obligations to release, indemnify and hold Railroad harmless, and obligations to 
reimburse Railroad or to pay any fees or costs hereunder shall survive the expiration or 
termination of this Agreement. 

 
13. RAILROAD FORCE ACCOUNT COSTS: 
 

13.1 Railroad’s expense for wages of Railroad employees (“Force Account” charges) and 
materials for any work performed at the expense of Licensee pursuant to this Agreement 
shall be paid by Licensee within thirty (30) days after receipt of a bill therefor. 

 
13.2 Such Force Account expenses shall include, but not be limited to: cost of labor and 

supervision under “Force Account” rules, plus current applicable overhead charges 
(traveling expense, Federal Railroad Retirement and Unemployment Taxes, vacation 
allowances); the actual cost of materials; and insurance and freight and handling charges 
on all materials used.  Equipment rentals, if any, shall be in accordance with Railroad 
fixed applicable rates. 

 
14. RISK, LIABILITY, INDEMNITY: 
 

14.1 Licensee, recognizing that Railroad’s operations and any use of Railroad property, tracks 
and right-of-way involves increased risks, expressly assumes all risk of loss and damage 
to, and waives any right to ask or demand damages for, Property of Licensee, or any part 
thereof, at the Crossing, including loss of or interference with the use of service thereof, 
regardless of cause, including:  

 
(A) any fault, failure or negligence of Railroad in the construction, operation or 

maintenance of the Crossing or in rail operations on or over the Crossing; and/or 
 
(B) any fire, regardless or the source or origin thereof.  For this Section, the term 

“Property of Licensee” shall include property of third parties situated or placed 
upon Railroad’s right-of-way by Licensee or by such third parties at request of or 
for the sole benefit of Licensee. 

 
14.2 Licensee, with the recognition above, and as further consideration for the grant of this 

crossing right, also assumes all liability for, and releases and agrees to defend, indemnify, 
protect and save Railroad harmless from and against: 

 
(A) all loss of or damage to any other property, including property in the care, 

custody or control of Railroad and of third parties, now situated or which may be 
placed at the Crossing or adjacent thereto, and the loss of or interference with any 
use or services thereof; and 

 
(B) all loss and damage on account of injury to or death of any and all persons 

(including but not limited to employees, invitees and patrons of the parties 
hereto) on the Crossing; and 

 
(C) all claims and liability for such loss and damage and cost and expenses thereof;  
 



LC Form 7422-I v1 
Revised January 2021 

Agreement No. LC-210413 

 7 

arising out of, resulting from, or connected in any manner with the construction, 
reconstruction, maintenance, existence, use, condition, repair, change, relocation or 
subsequent removal of said Crossing, any part thereof or appurtenant structures, 
regardless of cause, even if occurring or resulting from the sole or joint fault, failure or 
negligence of Railroad, including such loss, damage or injury:  (i) caused in whole or in 
part by the fault, failure or negligence of Railroad; or (ii) caused in whole or in part by 
the fault, failure or negligence of Licensee; or (iii) resulting from the creation of this 
license and additional hazards that this Crossing imposes upon Railroad’s operations. 

 
14.3 For the purpose of these Liability and Indemnity provisions only, all persons, including 

the employees of Railroad (flaggers, watchmen, etc.) and of Licensee, or employees of 
any independent or subcontracting third parties engaged in any construction or 
maintenance activities at the Crossing, in any of the work described in this Agreement, 
shall be deemed to be the sole contractors of Licensee while so engaged. 

 
14.4 All obligations of Licensee under this Agreement to release, indemnify and hold Railroad 

harmless shall also extend to companies and other legal entities that control, are 
controlled by, are subsidiaries of, or are affiliated with Railroad, and their respective 
officers, agents and employees. 

 
14.5 Licensee shall immediately advise Railroad in writing, by U.S. certified mail, return 

receipt requested, of any claims made against Licensee and/or Railroad under this 
Agreement or from use of the Crossing. 

 
15. NOTICE: 
 

15.1 Licensee shall give Railroad’s operator at least five (5) days written notice before doing 
any work of any character hereunder on Railroad’s property, except that in cases of 
emergency shorter notice may be given to Railroad. Such notice shall be sent or delivered 
to:                                                        

 Lancaster & Chester Railroad LLC   
 512 South Main Street      
 Lancaster, SC 29720      
 Attn: Chris Starnes – General Manager   

 
  With a copy to:  RAMS, Inc.  
     1629 Race Track Road, Suite 206 
     St Johns, FL 32259  
     Attn: Jarrett Mankin 
 
  In addition to the five (5) days written notice, prior to entering the Railroad’s property,  
  Licensee will provide daily notification to Mr. Chris Starnes, General Manager at: 
                                
                                           Office Phone:  803-286-2100 
     Cell Phone:     276-623-6632 
                                                        Email:   cts@gulfandohio.com 
 
                           Such notification must be acknowledged, and permission received from the Railroad in  
  each instance that Licensee will occupy Railroad’s property for any reason or cause.         
 

15.2 All other notices and communications concerning this Agreement shall be addressed to 
Licensee and to Railroad at the address first written above, or at such other address as 
either party may designate in writing to the other. 



LC Form 7422-I v1 
Revised January 2021 

Agreement No. LC-210413 

 8 

15.3 All notices under this Section shall be in writing and sent via USPS, or a written record 
maintained by Licensee of phone or email notices exchanged between Licensee and 
Railroad.  All notices shall be effective upon actual receipt. 

 
16. INSURANCE:  
 

16.1 Prior to installation or occupation of the Pipeline pursuant to this Agreement, Licensee 
shall procure Public Liability or Commercial General Liability Insurance, and shall also 
maintain during continuance of this Agreement, at its sole cost and expense, a policy of 
Public Liability or Commercial General Liability Insurance covering liability under this 
License.  Coverage of Three Million U.S. Dollars ($3,000,000) Combined Single Limit 
per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage, and an aggregate of Six Million 
U.S. Dollars ($6,000,000) required as a minimum to protect Licensee’s assumed 
obligations hereunder.  If said policy does not automatically cover Licensee’s contractual 
liability under this Agreement, a specific endorsement adding such coverage shall be 
purchased by Licensee. Failure to do so shall be at Licensee’s sole risk. 

 
16.2 If said CGL policy is written on a “claim made” basis instead of a “per occurrence” basis, 

Licensee shall arrange for adequate time for reporting losses.  If said CGL policy does 
not automatically cover Licensee’s contractual liability during periods of survey, 
installation, maintenance and continued occupation, a specific endorsement adding such 
coverage shall be purchased by Licensee.  Failure to do so shall be at Licensee’s sole risk. 

 
16.3 Throughout any period of construction performed within fifty (50) feet of railroad 

operations, the insurance industry dictates that Railroad Protective Liability Insurance 
(RPL) should be purchased to protect the railroad.  No work of any character shall be 
started on the property of Railroad without an RPL insurance policy having been received 
in the name of and approved by Railroad as to the limits, form, and substance.  Limits are 
Three Million U.S. Dollars ($3,000,000) for bodily injury and property damage per 
occurrence, and an aggregate of Six Million U.S. Dollars ($6,000,000).  The policy will 
remain in force during the construction and must be provided prior to Railroad executing 
the covering agreement.  If you are a member of AEGIS (Associated Electric & Gas 
Insurance Services Limited), this may be submitted for Railroad’s review and acceptance.   

 
16.4 Securing such insurance shall not limit Licensee’s liability hereunder but shall be 

additional security therefor. 
 

16.5 Railroad may at any time request evidence of insurance purchased by Licensee to comply 
with this Agreement.  Failure of Licensee to comply with Railroad’s demand shall be 
considered a default, subject to Article 13. 

 
17. BREACH, WAIVER: 
 

17.1 Any waiver by either party at any time of its rights as to anything herein contained shall 
not be construed as a permanent waiver of such covenant or condition, or any subsequent 
breach thereof, unless such covenant or breach is waived in writing by said party. 

 
17.2 Neither the failure of Railroad to object to any work done, material used, or method of 

construction or maintenance of said Crossing, nor any approval given or supervision 
exercised by Railroad, shall be construed as an admission of liability or responsibility by 
Railroad, or as a waiver by Railroad of any of the obligations, liability and/or 
responsibility of Licensee. 

 
 
 



LC Form 7422-I v1 
Revised January 2021 

Agreement No. LC-210413 

 9 

17.3 Unless otherwise expressly stated herein, all such notices shall be in writing and sent via 
facsimile or U.S. certified mail, return receipt requested, or by courier, and shall be 
effective upon actual receipt or date of addressee’s refusal of delivery. 

 
18. TITLE: 
 

18.1 Licensee shall not at any time own or claim any right, title or interest in or to Railroad’s 
property (including the real property occupied by the Crossing), nor shall the exercise of 
this Agreement for any length of time give rise to any title to said property, or any right 
or interest in Licensee other than the license created hereby. 

 
19. CONFIDENTIALITY: 
 

19.1 Licensee shall not profess or claim any rights, title, interest or ownership of the Crossing 
to any person or entity, and the terms and conditions of the Agreement are to remain 
confidential by both Licensee and Railroad. 

      
 20.      ASSIGNMENT: 
 

20.1 The rights herein conferred are the privilege of Licensee only, and Licensee shall obtain 
Licensor’s prior written consent to any assignment of Licensee’s interest herein.    

 
20.2 Subject to Section 20.3 herein below, this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to 

the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors or assigns, or heirs, legal 
representatives and assigns, as the case may be. 

 
20.3 Licensee shall give Railroad written notice of any legal succession (by merger, 

amalgamation, consolidation, reorganization, etc.) or other change of legal existence or 
status of Licensee, with a copy of all documents attesting to such change or legal 
succession, within thirty (30) days thereof.  Any change of legal existence, including a 
name change of Licensee, will be acknowledged and an assignment required of this 
Agreement or a new Agreement prepared to provide for the continuation of this 
Agreement and permit.  

 
20.4 Railroad expressly reserves the right to assign this Agreement, in whole or in part, to any 

grantee or vendee of Railroad’s underlying property interests in the Crossing, upon notice 
thereof to Licensee.  Nothing contained herein shall prevent or restrict Railroad’s right to 
assign this Agreement. 

 
20.5 In the event of any unauthorized sale, transfer, assignment, sublease, sub-license or 

encumbrance of this Agreement, Railroad’s real property (including the real property 
occupied by the Crossing) or any of the rights and privileges hereunder, Railroad, at its 
option, may terminate this Agreement at any time within six (6) months after such sale, 
transfer, etc., by giving Licensee or any such assignee written notice of such termination 
and, in such event, Licensee shall reimburse Railroad for any loss, cost or expense 
Railroad may incur as a result of Licensee’s failure to obtain Railroad’s prior written 
consent. 

 
20.6 In the event of sale or other conveyance by Railroad of any of its interests in the real 

property occupied by the Crossing, Railroad’s conveyance shall be made subject to the 
right of Licensee to continue to occupy the Crossing on the specific right-of-way, and to 
operate, maintain, repair, renew thereon and to remove therefrom the facilities of 
Licensee, subject to all other terms of this Agreement. 

      
 



LC Form 7422-I v1 
Revised January 2021 

Agreement No. LC-210413 

 10 

21. GENERAL PROVISIONS: 
 

21.1 Neither this Agreement nor any provision hereof or agreement or provision included 
herein by reference shall operate or be construed as being for the benefit of any third 
person. 

 
21.2 This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and 

the successors and assigns of Railroad, and the heirs, legal representatives, successors or 
assigns of Licensee, as the case may be.  However, this license is a personal privilege 
granted to Licensee and therefore no assignment sublease or sublicense hereof or of any 
rights or obligations hereunder shall be valid for any purpose without the prior written 
consent of Railroad. 

 
21.3 This Agreement contains the entire understanding between the parties hereto, and cannot 

be changed, altered, amended or modified, except by written instrument subsequently 
executed by the parties hereto. 

 
21.4 Neither the form nor any language of this Agreement shall be interpreted or construed in 

favor of or against either party hereto. 
 

21.5 This Agreement is executed under current interpretation of applicable Federal, State, 
County, Municipal or other local statute, ordinance or law.  Each separate provision 
herein shall have independent and severable status from each other for the determination 
of legality, so that if any separate provision is determined to be void, voidable, invalid or 
unenforceable for any reason, such determination shall have no effect upon the validity or 
enforceability of each other separate provision herein contained or any other combination 
thereof. 

 
21.6. This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of South 

Carolina both substantive and remedial regardless of the domicile of any party and will 
be deemed for such purposes to have been made, executed, and performed in the State of 
South Carolina; provided, however, that the parties hereto do not waive any defenses, 
rights, remedies, privileges, or other matters available to it under federal law or 
otherwise.  The parties hereto consent to the exclusive jurisdiction of the state and federal 
courts in South Carolina. 

 
21.7. In the event of any dispute hereunder, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover all 

costs and expenses incurred by it in connection with the enforcement of this Agreement, 
including all attorneys' fees in connection therewith.   

 
 
 
 
 
 

(remainder of this page left intentionally blank) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LC Form 7422-I v1 
Revised January 2021 

Agreement No. LC-210413 

 11 

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement in duplicate, each of 
which shall be evidence of this Agreement, but which shall constitute but one agreement, as of 
the day and year first above written. 
 
Witness for Railroad: Lancaster & Chester Railroad, LLC 
 
____________________ By: _____________________________ 
 Name:  Jarrett K. Mankin 
 Title:    Director of Real Estate 
 
Witness for Licensee:   Chester County Public Works 
 
____________________ By: _____________________________ 
 
 Print Name:  _____________________   
  
 Print Title:  _______________________  
     
       
 Tax Identification Number: __________ 
 

 



































District Road Name
Length  in 

miles Estimated Cost Priority # Scale Date Submitted Comments

3 Barbers Creek Rd/Katie Ln 1.052 1 F 6/30/2020
Potholes, center of road and shoulders 
eroded

3 Winne Hole Ln 0.200 2 F 4/27/2021 Join Barber's Creek Rd

3 Stacie Ln 0.130 3 F 4/27/2021 Join Barber's Creek Rd

3 Heather Hill Dr 0.100 4 F 4/27/2021 Join Barber's Creek Rd

5 Hopps Rd 1.000 5 F 6/30/2020
Potholes, center of road and shoulders 
eroded

5 Shoreview Dr 0.150 6 F 4/27/2021 Join Hopps Rd

3 Orr's Station Rd 0.800 7 F 4/27/2020
Potholes, center of road and shoulders 
eroded

3 Pall Mall Rd 0.110 8 F 4/27/2020 Join Orr's Station Rd

3 Ballindam Rd 0.230 9 F 4/27/2021 Join Orr's Station Rd

3 Sunshine Ln 0.720 10 F 4/27/2021 Join Orr's Station Rd

1 Poverty Hollow Rd 0.426 11 F 7/9/2020
Potholes, center of road and shoulders 
eroded

1 Lanksford Rd 0.330 12 F 7/9/2020 Join Poverty Hollow Rd

1 Knollwood Dr 0.280 13 F 4/27/2021 Join Poverty Hollow Rd

1 Kennington St 0.250 14 F 9/1/2020 Join Poverty Hollow Rd

Chester County Roads
Submitted by Public Works for Repaving in 2022

1 4/28/2021

















 

Chester County Council Meeting May 3rd, 2021                                                                     1 
 

  CHESTER COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING 
               R. Carlisle Roddey Chester County Government Complex 
                         1476 J.A. Cochran Bypass Chester, SC 29706 
                                                     Monday, May 3rd, 2021 at 6:00 PM 
                                                      Interim Supervisor Dr. Wylie Frederick Presiding 
  
                                                               Agenda   
 
 
1. Call to Order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation  

3. Approval of Minutes  
a. April 19th, 2021 Council Minutes. 
b. April 22nd, 2021 Special Called Minutes. 
c. April 26th, 2021 Special Called Minutes.  
 

4. Citizen Comments 

5. Public Hearing  

a. 3rd Reading of 2021-5 An Ordinance to Adopt Various International and Standard Codes Relating To  
Inspection Activities of The County of Chester, South Carolina And Enforcement of Building Provisions  
As Provided in Said Codes. 

6. Ordinances/Resolutions/Proclamations 

            a. 3rd Reading of 2021-5 An Ordinance to Adopt Various International and Standard Codes Relating To  
             Inspection Activities of The County of Chester, South Carolina And Enforcement of Building Provisions  
             As Provided in Said Codes. 

7. Old Business 

a. Update on the 2014 Capital Project Sales Tax funds. Susan Cok. 

b. 3rd Reading of CCMA21-01: Pamela F. Guinn request Tax Map # 122-00-00-197-000 located on  
Clinton Road, Edgemoor SC, be rezoned from ID-1 (Restricted Industrial) to R1 (Rural One). Planning  

Commission  

c. 3rd Reading of CCMA21-05: Patricia A Howze, Paulette Howze and Rachel D. Howze request Tax Map # 134-
00-00-199-000 located on Highway 223, Chester, be rezoned from R2 (Rural Two) to RS-1 (Single Family) 
Planning Commission  

 
d. 3rd Reading of CCMA21-06: J.M. Mullis, Inc request Tax Map # 165-00-00-079-000 located on Highway 21 
(Catawba River Rd) Fort Lawn, SC be rezoned from R2 (Rural Two) to ID-3 (General Industrial) Planning  
Commission voted 7-0 to approve. 
 
e. 3rd Reading of CCMA21-07: J.M. Mullis, Inc request Tax Map # 165-00-00-055-000 located on Highway 
21(Catawba River Rd) Fort Lawn, SC be rezoned from R2 (Rural Two) to ID-3 (General Industrial) Planning 
Commission voted 7-0 to approve. 

 



 

Chester County Council Meeting May 3rd, 2021                                                                     2 
 

f. 3rd Reading of CCMA21-08: J.M. Mullis, Inc request Tax Map # 165-00-00-091-000 located on Highway 21 
(Catawba River Rd) Fort Lawn, SC be rezoned from ID-2 (Limited Industrial) to ID-3 (General Industrial)  

              Planning Commission voted 7-0 to approve. 

 
g. 3rd Reading of CCMA21-09: J.M. Mullis, Inc request Tax Map # 165-00-00-080-000 located on Highway 21 
(Catawba River Rd) Fort Lawn, SC be rezoned from ID-2 (Limited Industrial) to ID-3 (General Industrial)  
Planning Commission voted 7-0 to approve. 

 
h. 3rd Reading of CCMA21-10: J.M. Mullis, Inc request Tax Map# 165-00-00-066-000 located on Highway 
21(Catawba River Rd) Fort Lawn, SC be rezoned from ID-2 (Limited Industrial) to ID-3 (General Industrial)  
Planning Commission voted 7-0 to approve. 

 
i. 3rd Reading of CCMA21-11: J.M. Mullis, Inc request Tax Map # 165-00-00-065-000 located on Highway 21 
(Catawba River Rd) Fort Lawn, SC be rezoned from ID-2 (Limited Industrial) to ID-3 (General Industrial)  
Planning Commission voted 7-0 to approve. 

 

j. Approval of the Needs and Assessment 2021 Priority List-County Council. 
 

k. From CTC meeting. 

   1. Action taken for reimbursement from C-funds to the Road Department in the amount of $38,170.38. 
   2. Action taken for reimbursement from C-funds to the Recycling Department in the amount of $1458.38. 
   3. Action taken for 2022 Road repaving list. 
   4. Action taken for Pedestrian Crossing Agreement at Railroad at Pizza Hut.  
   5. Action taken for truck traffic on Sugar Plum Road. 
   6. Action taken for road repairs on Wylie Road. 
   7. Action taken for 2022 SCDOT/ CTC partnership. 
   8. Action taken for Douglas and Washington Street sidewalks. 

 
8. New Business 

 
a. 1st Reading of CCMA21-12: Michael D. Cannon of MC Real Estate, LLC request Tax Map # 125-00-00-010-
000 located on Colonels Point Parkway be rezoned from ID-2 (Limited Industrial) to ID-3 (General Industrial). 
Planning Commission vote 6-0 to approve with a reverter clause if the business closes.  

b. 1st Reading of CCMA21-13: Michael R. Mills, agent for JAH Properties LLC request Tax Map # 087-00-00-
001-000 (portion of) located along Darby Road, Chester SC be rezoned from R2 (Rural Two) to RS-1 (Single 
Family) Planning Commission voted 6-0 to approve.  

 

9. Boards and Commissions -None 

10. Executive Session 

a.  Discussion regarding Project Magma. Attorney Winters. 
b. To Discuss a contractual matter regarding Project 2024. Attorney Winters. 
c.  To receive legal advice regarding Southeastern Petroleum.  Attorney Winters. 

d.  Receive legal advice for a property contract. Attorney Winters. 
 

11. Council Actions Following Executive Session  

a. Action taken regarding discussion for Project Magma. 
b. Action taken regarding discussion of Project 2024. 
c. Action taken regarding legal advice for Southeastern Petroleum. 
d. Action taken regarding legal advice for a property contract. 



 

Chester County Council Meeting May 3rd, 2021                                                                     3 
 

 
12. Council Comments 

13. Adjourn 

 
Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, the Chester News & Reporter, The Herald in Rock Hill, SC, WSOC-TV, Channel 9 Eyewitness News, the Mfg. Housing 
Institute of SC, WRHI Radio Station, C&N2 News, WCNC News and Capitol Consultants were notified, and a notice was posted on the bulletin board at the Chester 
County Government Building 24 hours prior to the meeting. 
 

 
     * * * P U BL I C  NO T I CE * * *    

Chester County Council has relaxed some of the COVID measures put into place for personal appearances at County 
Council meetings and will now allow up to seventeen (17) citizens into the Council meeting room provided that masks 
are kept on throughout the meeting and individuals in attendance maintain social distancing at all times.  As COVID 
conditions improve, Council does hope to allow for more personal attendance at County Council meetings.   

  Any citizen who wishes to make a public comment at the County Council meetings can do so in the following 
ways:  

1. You may submit your comments in writing to County Council by emailing Karen Lee, klee@chestercounty.org.  

2. You may submit your comments by mail: Chester County Clerk to Council, Karen Lee, PO Box 580, Chester, 
SC 29706.  

3. As stated above, attendance by other than Council members and staff is limited to seventeen (17) individuals.  
Anyone who wishes to appear in person to speak during Citizens Comments can either register with the Chester 
County Clerk to Council by phone 803-377-7852 or by email at klee@chestercounty.org no later than 10:00 am 
on the day of the Council meeting.  Chester County cannot guarantee entry into the Council meeting to address 
County Council if the maximum attendance has been reached unless the individual pre-registered with the Clerk 
to Council.    The Clerk will confirm the appointment back to the requestor.   Standards for Citizen’s Comments 
remain the same with regard to time allocated for speaking, etc. All rules of social distancing as recommended 
by the CDC and the etiquette procedures of the County Council must be followed. Chester County Council 
remains committed and receptive to the comments of the citizens of Chester County and while the Council does 
not like these restrictions, they are being done in the interest of everyone’s health.     

Guidelines for Addressing Council 

   Citizens Comments: 

• Each citizen will be limited to three minutes. 
 
Public Hearings: 

• Each speaker will be limited to three-minutes. 
When introduced: 

• Approach the podium, state your name and address. 
• Speak loudly and clearly making sure that the microphone is not obstructed. 
• Do not address the audience – direct all comments to Council. 
• Do not approach the Council table unless directed. 

 

Anyone addressing Council will be called out of order if you: 

mailto:klee@chestercounty.org
mailto:klee@chestercounty.org


 

Chester County Council Meeting May 3rd, 2021                                                                     4 
 

• Use profanity. 
• Stray from the subject. 
• Make comments personally attacking an individual member of Council. 

 

 



1 
                                     Chester County Council Meeting Minutes April 19th, 2021 

              CHESTER COUNTY COUNCIL MINUTES 
          R. Carlisle Roddey Chester County Government Complex 
                                        1476 J.A. Cochran Bypass Chester, SC 29706 
                                          Monday, April 19th, 2021 at 6:00 PM 
         
   Present:  Interim Chairman Dr. Wylie Frederick, Vice Chairman Joe Branham, Councilman Brad Jordan,  
   Councilman Mike Vaughn, Councilwoman Mary Guy, Councilman Pete Wilson, Clerk to Council Karen Lee and  
   County Attorney Joanie Winters.  Councilman William Killian arrived at 6:02 pm. Rules of Procedure Section 2-59  
   and 60 were suspended. 

   

1. Call to Order- Interim Chairman Dr. Frederick called the meeting to order. 

2. Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation- Pledge was recited in unison; Councilwoman Guy gave the invocation.  
 

3. Approval of Minutes  
a. April 6th, 2021 Council Minutes.  
Vice Chairman Branham motioned to approve, second by Councilwoman Guy. Vote 5-0 to approve.  
 

4. Citizen Comments 

           Chase Catledge, 1047 Four Boys Alley, Richburg, SC, Robert Dodson, 220 Coneflower Place, Fort Mill, SC, Jeff 
Harris, 4354 Simpson Road, Edgemoor, Jim Poore, 4414 Simpson Road, Edgemoor and Joe Moss, 3559 Ernandez 
Road, Richburg stated they were opposed to Winchester Development rezoning request. They all agreed the roads, 
schools, police and fire departments were not ready for this type of development. They want to see the County grow 
but wants to make sure everything is done right and doesn’t want to end up like Hwy 160 in Fort Mill, SC.  

  
           Sara Shirley, 8008 Corporate Center Dr, Charlotte, John Ross, 3501 Lake Park Rd, Indian Trail, NC, Jonathan 

McCall, 5616 Lander Benton, Unionville, NC, Max Nelson, 1224 Pickens St, Columbia, SC stated they were 
committed to working with the County to meet the needs for responsible growth, they want to provide houses, so 
people doesn’t just work here and then leave to go home to another county. But to work here and live here.  

 
            John Agee, PO Box 9, Richburg, SC thanked County Council for a $5000 dollar grant match they approved to buy 

a three-thousand-gallon Forestry tanker.  
 
           Eddie Murphy, 4667 Edgeland Road, Edgmoor, SC talked about needs of support they may have in the future at the 

Lando fire station for future developments.  
   

5. Public Hearing-None 

6. Ordinances/Resolutions/Proclamations 

           a. 2nd Reading of 2021-5 An Ordinance To Adopt Various International And Standard Codes  
Relating To Inspection Activities Of The County Of Chester, South Carolina And Enforcement Of  
Building Provisions As Provided In Said Codes. Councilman Wilson motioned to approve, second by  
Councilman Killian. Vote 6-0 to approve.  
 
 
 

 



2 
                                     Chester County Council Meeting Minutes April 19th, 2021 

7. Old Business 
 
a. Approval of bid for a Chiller & Boiler at the Sheriff’s Office – Sheriff Dorsey. 
Vice Chairman Branham motioned to approve $243,844 dollars, second by Councilman Vaughn. Vote 6-0 to 
approve.  
 
b. 2nd Reading of CCMA21-01: Pamela F. Guinn request Tax Map # 122-00-00-197-000 located on Clinton 
Road, Edgemoor SC, ne rezoned from ID-1 (Restricted Industrial) to R1 (Rural One). Planning Commission 

voted 7-0 to approve. Councilman Vaughn motioned to approve, second by Councilman Jordan. Vote 5-0 to 
approve.  

c. 2nd Reading of CCMA21-05: Patricia A Howze, Paulette Howze and Rachel D. Howze request Tax Map # 
134-00-00-199-000 located on Highway 223, Chester, be rezoned from R2 (Rural Two) to RS-1 (Single Family) 
Planning Commission voted 7-0 to approve. Councilman Jordan motioned to approve, second by Councilwoman 
Guy. Vote 5-0 to approve.  
 
d. 2nd Reading of CCMA21-02: Chester Land Holdings, LLC. Request Tax Map # 123-00-00-032-000 located 
along Edgeland Road, Edgemoor SC, be rezoned from R2 (Rural Two) to PD (Planned Development) 
Planning Commission voted 3-4 to deny. Councilman Jordan motioned to uphold the Planning Commission’s vote 
to deny with discussion, second by Councilman Wilson. Council decided to delay the third and final reading to May 
17th to hold a workshop with entities that would be a part of any new developments before the third and final reading. 
Councilman Wilson withdrew his second, Councilman Jordan withdrew his motion. Councilman Jordan motioned 
to uphold the Planning Commissions to deny the rezoning request and for Council to hold a workshop with various 
entities to discuss issues concerning infrastructure and density until May 17th, second by Councilman Wilson. Vote 
3-2 to deny. Councilman Wilson and Killian opposed.  
  
e. 2nd Reading of CCMA21-04: Chester Land Holdings, LLC. Request Tax Map # 123-00-00-078-000 located 
along Edgeland Road, Edgemoor SC, be rezoned from R2 (Rural Two) to PD (Planned Development) 
Planning Commission voted 7-0 to deny. Councilman Jordan motioned to uphold the Planning Commission to 
deny, second by Councilman Vaughn. Vote 6-0 to deny.  
 
f. 2nd Reading of CCMA21-06: J.M. Mullis, Inc request Tax Map # 165-00-00-079-000 located on Highway 21 
(Catawba River Rd) Fort Lawn, SC be rezoned from R2 (Rural Two) to ID-3 (General Industrial) Planning 

Commission voted 7-0 to approve. Councilwoman Guy motioned to approve, second by Councilman Jordan. 
Councilman Jordan asked if Councilwoman Guy would add a reverter clause. Councilwoman Guy withdrew her 
motion and Councilman Jordan withdrew his second. Councilwoman Guy motioned to approve with a reverter clause 
if the company did not follow through the property would revert back to the original zoning, second by Councilman 
Jordan. Vote 6-0 to approve.  
 
 g. 2nd Reading of CCMA21-07: J.M. Mullis, Inc request Tax Map # 165-00-00-055-000 located on Highway   
21(Catawba River Rd) Fort Lawn, SC be rezoned from R2 (Rural Two) to ID-3 (General Industrial) Planning 
Commission voted 7-0 to approve. Councilman Vaughn motioned to approve with a reverter clause, second by 
Councilman Jordan. Vote 6-0 to approve.  

 

h. 2nd Reading of CCMA21-08: J.M. Mullis, Inc request Tax Map # 165-00-00-091-000 located on Highway 21 
(Catawba River Rd) Fort Lawn, SC be rezoned from ID-2 (Limited Industrial) to ID-3 (General Industrial) 
Planning Commission voted 7-0 to approve. Councilman Jordan motioned to approve with a reverter clause, 
second by Councilwoman Guy. Vote 6-0 to approve.  
 

i. 2nd Reading of CCMA21-09: J.M. Mullis, Inc request Tax Map # 165-00-00-080-000 located on Highway 21 
(Catawba River Rd) Fort Lawn, SC be rezoned from ID-2 (Limited Industrial) to ID-3 (General Industrial) 
Planning Commission voted 7-0 to approve. Councilman Vaughn motioned to approve with a reverter clause, 
second by Councilman Wilson. Vote 6-0 to approve.  
 



3 
                                     Chester County Council Meeting Minutes April 19th, 2021 

j. 2nd Reading of CCMA21-10: J.M. Mullis, Inc request Tax Map # 165-00-00-066-000 located on Highway 
21(Catawba River Rd) Fort Lawn, SC be rezoned from ID-2 (Limited Industrial) to ID-3 (General Industrial) 
Planning Commission voted 7-0 to approve. Councilwoman Guy motioned to approve with a reverter clause, 
second by Councilman Jordan. Vote 6-0 to approve. 
 
k. 2nd Reading of CCMA21-11: J.M. Mullis, Inc request Tax Map # 165-00-00-065-000 located on Highway 
21 (Catawba River Rd) Fort Lawn, SC be rezoned from ID-2 (Limited Industrial) to ID-3 (General 
Industrial) Planning Commission voted 7-0 to approve. Councilman Wilson motioned to approve with a reverter 
clause, second by Councilman Jordan. Vote 6-0 to approve.  
 

8. New Business-None  
 

9. Boards and Commissions-None 

10. Executive Session 
Councilwoman Guy motioned to go into Executive Session, second by Councilman Vaughn. Vote 5-0 to approve.  
 
a. Receive legal advice for Project Magma. - Attorney Winters. 
b. Receive legal advice for a property contract. Attorney Winters. 
c. Update to a contractual matter regarding Great Falls- Attorney Winters. 

11. Council Actions Following Executive Session  
Councilman Jordan motioned to go back to Regular Session, second by Councilwoman Guy. Vote 6-0 to approve.  
 
a. Action taken regarding legal advice on Project Magma. Taken as information. 

b. Action taken regarding legal advice for a property contract. 
Councilman Vaughn motioned to authorize the Sheriff’s office to negotiate a lease for a substation in Richburg 
and subject of approval from County Council, second by Councilman Killian. Vote 6-0 to approve.  
  
c. Action taken regarding Great Falls contractual matter. 
Taken as information. 
 

12. Council Comments 
Councilman Vaughn invited everyone to participate Saturday April 24 which was Earth Day to help pickup trash 
along the roads.  
 

13. Adjourn 
Councilwoman Guy motioned to adjourn, second by Councilman Killian. Vote 6-0 to adjourn.  

 
     Time: 8:40 PM. 
 
Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, the Chester News & Reporter, The Herald in Rock Hill, SC, WSOC-TV, Channel 9 Eyewitness News, the Mfg. 
Housing Institute of SC, WRHI Radio Station, C&N2 News, WCNC News and Capitol Consultants were notified, and a notice was posted on the bulletin board at 
the Chester County Government Building 24 hours prior to the meeting. 
 

 
 



 

 

 CHESTER COUNTY COUNCIL SPECIAL CALLED MEETING MINUTES 

             R. Carlisle Roddey Chester County Government Building 
                            1476 J A Cochran Bypass- Council Chambers 
                              Thursday, April 22nd, 2021 at 6:30 PM  

 
                                                 

Present:  Interim Chairman Dr. Wylie Frederick, Vice Chairman Joe Branham, Councilman Brad 
Jordan, Councilman Mike Vaughn, Councilwoman Mary Guy, Councilman Pete Wilson, Clerk to Council 
Karen Lee and County Attorney Joanie Winters.  Councilman William Killian arrived at 6:02 pm. Rules 
of Procedure Section 2-59 and 60 were suspended. 

                   

1.    Call to Order-Interim Chairman Dr. Frederick called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 

2.    New Business 

        a. Approval of Chester Softball Field Grading bid (2014 Sales Tax Monies) – Susan Cok 
        Councilwoman Guy motioned to award the bid of $98,562.75 to LCI-Lineberger Construction  
        Company, second by Councilman Killian. Vote 6-0 to approve.  
 
3.    Executive Session 
       Vice Chairman Branham motioned to go into Executive Session, second by Councilman Killian. 
       Vote 6-0 to approve.  
 
           a. Discussion regarding Project Magma.  

4.    Council Action Following Executive Session 
       Councilwoman Guy motioned to go back to Regular Session, second by Councilman Killian.  
       Vote 6-0 to approve.  
         
           a. Action taken regarding discussion for Project Magma. Taken as information only.  

  5.  Adjourn 
       Councilman Vaughn motioned to adjourn, second by Councilwoman Guy. Vote 6-0 to adjourn. 
 
 Time: 8:40 PM 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, the Chester News & Reporter, The Herald in Rock Hill, SC, WSOC-TV, Channel 9 Eyewitness News, the Mfg. Housing 
Institute of SC, WRHI Radio Station, C&N2 News, WCNC News and Capitol Consultants were notified, and a notice was posted on the bulletin board at the Chester 
County Government Building 24 hours prior to the meeting. 

 



 

 

 CHESTER COUNTY COUNCIL SPECIAL CALLED MEETING MINUTES  

             R. Carlisle Roddey Chester County Government Building 
                            1476 J A Cochran Bypass- Council Chambers 
                             Monday, April 26th, 2021 at 6:00 PM  

 
                                                 

  

Present:  Interim Chairman Dr. Wylie Frederick, Vice Chairman Joe Branham (on the phone), Councilman 
Brad Jordan, Councilman Mike Vaughn, Councilwoman Mary Guy, Councilman Pete Wilson, Clerk to 
Council Karen Lee and County Attorney Joanie Winters. Absent: Councilman William Killian.  
Rules of Procedure Section 2-59 and 60 were suspended.  
                
1.    Call to Order-Interim Chairman Dr. Frederick called the meeting to order at 6:01 pm. 

2.    Executive Session 
       Councilwoman Guy motioned to go into Executive Session, second by Councilman Vaughn. 
       Vote 5-0 to approve.  
 
       a. Discussion regarding Project Magma.  

3.    Council Action Following Executive Session 
        Councilman Wilson motioned to go back to Regular Session, second by Councilman Jordan.  
        Vote 5-0 to approve.  
 
       a. Action taken regarding discussion for Project Magma.  
       Councilman Vaughn motioned to give the County Attorney authorization to negotiate as described 
       in executive session wastewater infrastructure for project magma, second by Vice Chairman  
       Branham. Vote 5-0 to approve.  
        

  4.  Adjourn 
       Councilman Vaughn motioned to adjourn, second by Councilman Wilson. Vote 5-0 to adjourn. 
 
 
      Time: 7:45 pm.  
 
 
 

 
Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, the Chester News & Reporter, The Herald in Rock Hill, SC, WSOC-TV, Channel 9 Eyewitness News, the Mfg. Housing 
Institute of SC, WRHI Radio Station, C&N2 News, WCNC News and Capitol Consultants were notified, and a notice was posted on the bulletin board at the Chester 
County Government Building 24 hours prior to the meeting. 

 



1 

 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )   Ordinance No. 2021-5 
    )   
    ) 
COUNTY OF CHESTER  ) 
  
 

 
AN ORDINANCE TO ADOPT VARIOUS INTERNATIONAL AND STANDARD CODES RELATING TO 

INSPECTION ACTIVITIES OF THE COUNTY OF CHESTER, SOUTH CAROLINA AND ENFORCEMENT 
OF BUILDING PROVISIONS AS PROVIDED IN SAID CODES. 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 6-9-10 of the South Carolina Code of laws, 1976, as 
Amended, Chester County acknowledges its responsibility to enforce the editions of the 
Building, Residential, Fire, Plumbing, Mechanical, Fuel Gas and Energy Conservation Codes, as 
published by the International Code Council and the edition of the National Electrical code, as 
published by the National Fire Protection Association and as duly adopted by the South Carolina 
Building Codes Council.  
 
WHEREAS, the adoption of these codes is done to facilitate proper inspection activities by 
Chester County, South Carolina relating to construction and to maintenance of buildings within 
said County of Chester, South Carolina and relating to public safety, health and general welfare; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY CHESTER COUNTY COUNCIL that the following codes 
are hereby adopted by reference as though they were copied herein fully: 
 
2018 S.C. Building Code or the 2018 International Building Code with SC modifications 
2018 S.C. Residential Code or the 2018 International Residential Code with SC modifications 
2018 S.C. Fire Code or the 2018 International Fire Code with SC modifications  
2018 S.C.  Plumbing Code or the 2018 International Plumbing Code 
2018 S.C. Mechanical Code or the 2018 International Mechanical Code with SC modifications 
2018 S.C. Fuel Gas Code or the 2018 International Fuel Gas Code with SC modifications  
2018 International Property Maintenance Code 
2018 Swimming Pool & Spa Code 
2018 International Existing Building Code 
2009 South Carolina Energy Conservation Code 
2017 National Electrical Code (NFPA 70) with SC modifications 
 
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that within said codes, when reference is made to duties of a certain 
official named therein, the designated official of Chester County, South Carolina, who has 
duties corresponding to those named official in said code shall be deemed to be the responsible 
official insofar as enforcing the provisions of said code are concerned. 
 



2 

Ordinance No. 2021-5 

This ordinance shall take effect upon adoption by the Chester County Council on the date of the 
final reading approval. 

Adopted this_________day of________________, 2021. 

CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

By:_________________________________ 
Dr. Wylie Frederick, Interim County Supervisor 

[SEAL] 

Attest: 

By:________________________ 
Karen Lee, Clerk to County Council 
Chester County, South Carolina 

First Reading:  
Second Reading: 
Public Hearing: 

April 6, 2021 
April 19, 2021
May 3, 2021 

Third Reading:              May 3, 2021 



County Council Meeting  

May 3, 2021 

 

Update on County 2014 Capital Project Sales Tax – Susan Cok 

• Construct two new softball fields at Chester Complex  

o Bid has been awarded to LCI-Lineberger Construction Co. 

o We will be grading the second field and adding fencing to the first field (which is already 

complete). 

• Construct fire substation North Chester 

o Money is being used for architectural plans. 

o Money has been spent to update the civil drawings. 

o Bids are due on the civil/site construction on May 11th. Once awarded, we will talk with 

contractor to see how much work can be done prior to the deadline. We hope to use 

the remining balance for this work. 

• Construct two soccer fields with lighting at Rodman Complex 

o Fields have been built, and irrigation has been installed. Balance has been used. 

• Construct concessions at Rodman Complex 

o The remaining balance will be used for architectural plans. 

• Construct baseball/softball with lighting at Rodman Complex 

o The remaining balance will be used for architectural drawings to turn the baseball fields 

around and add a field. This will be following the newest design approved by County 

Council. 















































































CHESTER COUNTY, SC  

PRIORITIZED COMMUNITY NEEDS 
 

March 2021 

MARCH 2021 

The following lists the top priority needs of Chester County: 

1. Upgrade water, sanitary sewer, and storm sewer infrastructure and services in low and moderate income areas 
including infrastructure upgrades in the, East Chester, Lancaster Street, Saluda Street, and McClure Street areas 
in the City of Chester, and storm drainage in the Cedar Grove area of Chester County. This also includes the 
upgrade of the Sandy River Wastewater Treatment Plant. 

2. Address slums and blighted areas. This includes the clearance of Brownfield areas as well as the following 
abandoned mills: Great Falls Mill Numbers 1, 2 and Number 3, Eureka Mill, and the Gayle Mill.  This also includes 
the demolition of dilapidated buildings and residences in low and moderate income areas. 

3. Continue efforts to prepare for, respond to, and prevent the Coronavirus.   

4. Renovate or construct the following facilities: 

• Continue upgrades of library in the Town of Great Falls 

• Facility for the joint location of services to include SC DHEC, SC Works, and the Chester County Board of 
Disabilities and other agencies 

• County recreation complex 

• County Jail 

• Chester County Courthouse 

• Park and amphitheater for the Town of Fort Lawn 

5. Construct a new County animal shelter 

6. Create a strategic plan for housing 

7. Support additional Chester County Library facilities to provide education and training for low and moderate 
income citizens in order to enhance employment opportunities. 

8. Expand water, sanitary sewer, and storm sewer services to low and moderate income areas currently not being 
served. 

9. Construct and upgrade of infrastructure to promote economic development through the expansion of existing 
industries and location of new industries.  

10. Construct a fire substation in the North Chester area in order to provide expanded fire protection services. 

11. Extend water, sewer, and other infrastructure services to affordable housing sites in order to promote housing 
opportunities for low and moderate income persons. 

12. Extend water and sewer along the I-77 corridor, including the SC Highway 97 interchange from Richburg. 

13. Implement improvements to make the I-77 and SC Highway 9 interchange less dangerous, including the addition 
of turning lanes. 

14. Upgrade sidewalks to include Ashford Street from Ella to the J.A. Cochran Bypass, the area from Parkway 
Avenue to the J.A. Cochran Bypass, York Street, the Gayle Mill neighborhood, Brendale Street, areas along J.A. 
Cochran Bypass, and sidewalks in the Town of Fort Lawn. 

15. Continue to further fair housing in Chester County. 
















	1. 5-3-2021 CCTC Agenda  at 5.15 PM
	2.  4-6-2021 CCTC Minutes
	3. Pedestrian Crossing Agreement - 210413 - Chester County
	PEDESTRIAN GRADE CROSSING LICENSE AGREEMENT
	512 South Main Street


	4. Chester County Roads Repaving List - 04.27.2021
	County

	5. Road Dept  Reimbursement_2021-04-26-090216897
	6. Recycling Dept Reimbursement_2021-04-26-145851417
	7..5-3-2021
	8. 4-19-2021 Council minutes
	9. 4-22-2021 Special Called Minutes
	10. 4-26-2021 Special Called meeting minutes
	11.  2021-5 Ordinance to Adopt Internatl Bldg Codes  Standard Bldg Codes2021jw.v.2
	12. Update on 2014 CPST funds
	13 .  CCMA21- 01 Pamela Guinn_2021-04-01-105456255
	14.  CCMA21- 05  Patricia  Howze _2021-04-01-105706666
	15.  CCMA21-06 JM Mullis_2021-04-01-124721313
	16.  CCMA21-07 JM Mullis_2021-04-01-125128785
	17.  CCMA21-08 JM Mullis_2021-04-01-125316073
	18.  CCMA21-09 JM Mullis_2021-04-01-125456253
	19.  CCMA21-10  JM Mullis_2021-04-01-125639576
	20.  CCMA21-11 JM Mullis_2021-04-01-125839471
	21.  2021 Priority Needs List_Chester County
	22. CCMA21-12 Michael Cannon_2021-04-21-152651937
	23. CCMA21-13  Michael R. Mills_2021-04-21-152829843



